Re:

MIC, Inc. 

Premises:
4 Hampden Street

City/Town:
Chicopee, MA 01013

Heard:

January 26, 2010

DECISION

MIC, Inc., Matthew Ferri (“the Licensee”) holds an all alcohol license pursuant to Massachusetts General Laws chapter 138, §12.  The Alcoholic Beverages Control Commission (“the Commission”) scheduled a hearing on January 26, 2010 regarding alleged violations of Massachusetts General Laws chapter 138, §77 – Ceasing to Conduct the Licensed Business; 204 CMR 2.01(8) – All applications shall be made under the penalties of perjury and any false statement contained in any application shall be a cause or ground for refusing to grant the license or permit or for suspending, canceling or revoking a license or permit already granted (2 counts); Massachusetts General Laws chapter 138, §64 – License issued under this chapter by the local licensing authorities in violation of §16 A or any other provision of this chapter (2 counts).   Prior to the commencement of the hearing, the licensee stipulated to the violations detailed in the investigator’s report dated November 16, 2009.   
The following documents are in evidence:

1. Investigator Jan Kujawski’s Report; 

2. Affidavit of Applicant;

3. Approved Form 43 and Application of MIC, Inc.;

4. License Renewal for 2007; 

5. License Renewal for 2008; 

6. License Renewal for 2009; 

7. Photograph of current license location CVS at 4 Hampden Street, Chicopee, MA; 

8. Photograph of proposed change of location address, 520 Memorial Drive, Chicopee, MA; and,

9. Licensee’s Stipulation of Facts. 

There is one tape of this hearing.

Facts

1. Review of the Licensee’s file was the result of an application received by the Commission on 2/23/2009 requesting the approval of a transfer of license and a change of location.  

2. The application pending before the Commission requested a transfer of license and change of location from MIC, Inc., 4 Hampden Street, Chicopee, MA to Memorial Crossing, Inc., 520 Memorial Drive, Chicopee, MA. 

3. Administrative review of the license file indicated that on December 20, 2005 the Licensee, Matthew Ferri, applied for a change of location from 67 Exchange Street, Chicopee to 4 Hampden Street, Chicopee.  

4. A review of the submitted application indicated the licensed business has not been in operation since the original transfer and change of location from the Polish American Veterans Club, 116 School Street to MIC, Inc., 67 Exchange Street in 1999.

5. Mr. Ferri submitted an affidavit claiming the business would be operational at 4 Hampden Street by the fall of 2007.

6. The application was approved by the local licensing authorities and subsequently approved by the Commission. 

7. The Licensee then submitted the required 2007 Renewal Application on November 13, 2006 signed under the pains and penalties of perjury, indicating the premises is not open for business pending construction of a new building.

8. On November 30, 2007, the Licensee submitted the required 2008 Renewal Application signed under the pains and penalties of perjury, indicating the premises to be open for business.

9. On November 26, 2008, the Licensee submitted the required 2009 Renewal Application signed under the pains and penalties of perjury, indicating the premises to be open for business.

10. On October 7, 2009, investigators Rose Egan-Bailey and Jan Kujawski conducted an on-site inspection of the current license location as well as the proposed location.  

11. When the investigators arrived at 4 Hampden Street in Chicopee, they observed the property address to be the location of a CVS Pharmacy. They also observed the land of 520 Memorial Drive to be a vacant lot with signage indicating real estate for sale.

12. Mr. Ferri is the sole owner of an all-alcohol license and decided to close the club due to financial reasons.  

13. He purchased the license in the hopes of opening a “sports bar.”

14. The building and site, originally purchased by an area developer, was cited by the MA DEP for environmental deficiencies and since then, has been razed.  

15. The license was sold to Chicopee Entertainment Corp. under agreement in December 2001 and was subsequently re-issued to Mr. Ferri as of January 2005.

16. In January 2006, the license was transferred to 26 Hampden Street, Chicopee, with approval from the local licensing authorities.

17. The developer has complied with all requests and issues associated with the development of this property from the City of Chicopee.  

18. The license is currently under renewal status with the local licensing authorities.

19. Mr. Ferri testified at the hearing before the Commission that he was pursued by the City of Chicopee to develop the land for economic development. 

20. The land that the license was granted for remains partially undeveloped even though there is a named developer.

21. The developer testified that he has gone through zoning for the area and has partially developed some of the area (a CVS has been built in some part of the area) but the other remains undeveloped.

Conclusion
By not conducting the business on the site at 4 Hampden Street, Chicopee, MA as well as 67 Exchange Street, Chicopee, MA, the Licensee is in violation of Massachusetts General Laws chapter 138, §77.

Since the Licensee signed under the pains and penalties of perjury that he was conducting business on the aforementioned properties, and did not do so, he was clearly in violation of 204 CMR 2.01(8).

Therefore, the Commission hereby cancels the license MIC, Inc. currently held by the Licensee Matthew Ferri. 

ALCOHOLIC BEVERAGES CONTROL COMMISSION

Susan Corcoran, Commissioner______________________________________________

Robert H. Cronin, Commissioner_____________________________________________

Dated in Boston, Massachusetts this 1st day of March 2010.

You have the right to appeal this decision to the Superior Courts under the provisions of Chapter 30A of the Massachusetts General Laws within thirty days of receipt of this decision. 

cc:
Chicopee Licensing Board

Frederick G. Mahony, Chief Investigator
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